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SANTA FE COUNTY 

SURFACE AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 

MULTIPLE COUNTY ROADS 

IFB # 2019-0119-PW/MAM 

ADDENDUM #2 

Dear Proponents, 

This addendum is issued to reflect the following immediately.  It shall be the responsibility of interested 

Offerors to adhere to any changes or revisions to the RFP as identified in this Addendum No. 2.  This 

documentation shall become permanent and made part of the departmental files. 

ATTACHMENT A:  Pre-Proposal Agenda, Sign in Sheet, Revised Bid Sheets
ATTACHMENT B:  Traffic Control Specification dated January 26, 2018 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

THE BID OPENING HAS BEEN POSTPONED TO THE FOLLOWING: 

       DATE:  THURSDAY, JANUARY 31, 2019 

LOCATION: SANTA FE COUNTY PURCHASING OFFICE 

142 W. PALACE AVENUE 2ND FLOOR 

SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 

TIME: 2:00PM 

Question# 1:  What are the asphalt smoothness requirements? 

Answer# 1:  See Section 416 Minor Paving per NMDOR Standard Specifications for 

Highway and Bridge Construction 2014 Edition.  
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Question# 2: Camino Torcido Loop, Bid item # 6 - Will prime coat be required even if asphalt is 

placed within the allowable time after subgrade density has been certified?  If prime 

coat is required, will areas that have received prime coat need to be closed to all 

traffic for curing (24 hours per NMDOT 408)? 

Answer# 2: Prime Coat is required per NMDOT Standard Specifications section 408. One 

lane can be closed until prime coat penetrates the surface. 

Question# 3: Please clarify traffic control. What are the traffic flow requirements?  

Answer# 3:  Please see SF County Traffic Control Specification dated January 26, 2018. 

Question# 4: Will a fulltime onsite TCS be required in addition to the onsite 

supervisor/responsible person (per NMDOT spec 618)?  Additionally, will TCS or 

responsible person be required to maintain a Traffic control diary (per NMDOT spec 

618)?   

Answer #4: Please see SF County Traffic Control Specification Dated January 26, 2018. A 

traffic control diary is required, a fulltime TCS is not required. 

Question #5: General note #17, Sheet 01-07, Camino Torcido Loop plans – Contractor is 

responsible for county environmental and archeological clearances, taxes and fees.  

Please provide information about the taxes and fees that are applicable and contact 

information for obtaining clearances. 

Answer #5: SF County has taken care of all environmental and archaeological information, 

clearances, taxes and fees. 

Question #6: Erosion control note # 5, Sheet 01-07, Camino Torcido Loop plans – disturbed areas 

that are not being surfaced are to receive seed/sod.  Will a bid item be provided for 

this work?  Please specify the seed/sod type. 

Answer #6:  No seeding is required of Contractor. 

Question #7: Will vibration monitoring and pre/post video recording be required?  If yes, can a bid 

item be provided for these items? 

Answer #7:  No vibration monitoring and pre/post video recording is required. 

Question #8: Pavement note #15, sheet 01-08, Camino Torcido Loop plans – If contractor is 

required to only use non-vibratory compaction, does the county accept all 



102 Grant Avenue · P.O. Box 276 · Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276 · 505-986-6200 · FAX: 

505-995-2740   www.santafecountynm.gov

responsibility for failing compaction tests?  Will the county allow vibratory 

compaction if vibration monitoring and pre/post video is performed? 

Answer #8:  Vibratory compaction is allowed. 

Question #9: Surfacing schedule, sheet 02-02, Camino Torcido Loop plans – tapers at the edge of 

the roadway are not included in the calculations on this sheet.  Are tapers (asphalt, 

base course, subgrade prep, restriping, etc.) incidental? 

Answer #9: Material quantities appearing in the bid schedule, plans, or other contract 

documents are approximate only and are prepared for the comparison of bids.  

Payment to the Contractor shall be made only for the actual quantities of work 

performed in accordance with section 102.6 of the NMDOT specifications. 

Question #10: Detail 2 (typical driveway culvert section), sheet 10-02, Camino Torcido Loop plans 

– detail shows rip rap on either side of culvert.  This rip rap is not shown on the

roadway plans.  Please confirm that rip rap will be required at every driveway.

Additionally, please clarify the quantity of rip rap that will be required at each drive

pad (detail does not provide dimensions).

Answer #10: Rip rap is only required at property #10 driveway in 20’ channel. 

Question #11: Detail 1 (new drainage easement channel typical section 1), sheet 10-02, Camino 

Torcido Loop plans – detail says “rip-rap at bends and culverts only”.  Easement 

channel plan (sheet 03-08) does not show rip rap at the bends.  Please clarify. 

Answer #11: Riprap shown on Sheet 03-08 is correct. 

Question #12: Drainage structure at Paseo Real, sheet 10-01, Camino Torcido Loop plans – plans 

do not clarify the removal and replacement of the Paseo Real roadway that will be 

required to install the storm drain crossing.  Additionally, there are no bid items in 

additive alternate #1 for this work.  Will this roadway patching be incidental? 

Answer #12: The plans do not clarify removal/replacement and patching of Paseo Real 

Roadway this shall be incidental for Add Alternative #1. 

Question #13: Drainage structure at Paseo Real, sheet 10-01, Camino Torcido Loop plans – 

Diameter for CMP is not listed on plans.  However, the diameter on the bid form is 

42”.  Please confirm that this is, in fact, a 42” CMP storm drain. 

Answer #13: 42” Culvert pipe 
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Question #14: Drainage structure at Paseo Real, sheet 10-01, Camino Torcido Loop plans – General 

notes 4 and 5 require additional grading.  Is this work incidental? 

Answer #14: Any additional grading is incidental. 

Question #15: Sheets 11-01 thru 11-04, Camino Torcido Loop plans – Keyed note 2 says to adjust 

existing utility structure to new grade.  There is no bid item for adjustments.  Is this 

work incidental? 

Answer #15: All utility companies are in the process of relocating utilities out of work zone 

before construction begins.  Contractor shall not be responsible for this work. 

Question #16: Sheet 01-04, Camino Torcido Loop plans – Plan calls for existing 18” CMP to be 

cleaned out a 2 locations.  Is this work incidental? 

Answer #16: This work is incidental to pipe culverts. 

Question #17: Existing fences – There are several existing fences that will need to be removed and 

replaced in order to complete the work, specifically the new storm drain lines.  There 

is no bid item for the removal and replacement of these fences.  Is this work 

incidental? 

Answer #17: Means and methods are the responsibility of the Contractor. If a fence is 

required to be removed and replaced as part of the work than it shall be 

incidental to the project. 

Question #18: There is no bid item for testing.  Will contractor be responsible for the cost of QA 

and QC testing? 

Answer #18: The Contractor is responsible for quality control testing in accordance with the 

NMDOT minimum testing requirements.  The testing is included in the 

payment for each associated pay item.  The County will perform all necessary 

quality acceptance testing. 

Question #19: At the pre bid it was stated that the engineer’s estimate would not be released.  Per 

the information to bidders, section 11, item B, “Any subcontractor who will be 

providing more than $5,000 or one-half of one percent of the architect’s or 

engineer’s estimate of the total project cost (not including alternates) whichever is 

greater for any service, must be listed on the Subcontractor Listing.”  Per this 

requirement, Engineer’s estimate must be provided in order to compute the 

subcontractor listing threshold. 
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Answer #19: This project is subject to wage rates as indicated within the IFB.   Contractors 

are to list any sub-contractors $5,000 or more.  The Engineer’s estimates are as 

follows: 

Racetrack Subdivision Estimate - $479,809.00 

Additive #1 - $27,424.00 

Additive #2 - $30,016.00 

Additive #3 - $27,049.00 

Camino Torcido Estimate - $797,738.98 

Additive #1 - $115,228.45 

Question #20: Culvert Pipe End Sections – Will concrete blankets with safety grates per NMDOT 

511 be required at these end sections. 

Answer #20: Concrete slope blankets with safety grates are not required. 

Question #21: Sheet 10-01, Camino Torcido Loop – Plan calls out end sections where the 42” CMP 

lines end on the north.  There is no bid item for these structures.  Are they incidental? 

Answer #21: End Sections are not required.  See Sheet 10-03 for headwall details. Concrete 

quantities listed in Summary of Quantities as Structural Concrete Class A. 

Question #22: Sheet 12-01 – Detail for arch pipe on suitable existing ground calls for 8” minimum, 

12” maximum lightly compacted granular material accompanied by bedding material 

directly beneath pipe.  Please confirm that this will be required.  If it is required, 

please confirm if in-situ material will be suitable for granular material and bedding 

material. 

Answer #22: The bedding material is incidental to the cost of the Culvert Pipe pricing in 

accordance with NMDOT section 570 Pipe culverts.  If existing project material 

meets the requirements for bedding material in accordance with NMDOT 

specification 570 Pipe Culverts then it may be used. 

Question #23: What is the expected start date for this project? 

Answer #23: It is anticipated that a Notice to Proceed will be issued in March of 2019. 

Question #24: Additive Alternates – I believe we will need a construction staking item, traffic 

control item, and possibly testing item for each of the alternates. These items cannot 

be anticipated for coverage in the base bid. 

Answer #24:  All items are incidental to work on Additive Alternates. 
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Question #25: Will extra days be added for the additive alternates? 

Answer #25: If the County awards additive alternates extra days will be added to the 

contract as follows: 

Camino Torcido Loop Drainage and Road Improvements 

 Additive Alternative #1 an additional 20 Working Days will be added in

the contract.

Racetrack Subdivision Drainage and Road Improvements 

 Additive Alternative #1 and additional 10 Working Days will be added to

the contract.

 Additive Alternative #2 and additional 10 Working Days will be added to

the contract.

 Additive Alternative #3 and additional 10 Working Days will be added to

the contract.

Question #26: Camino Torcido Bid Form – line # 667110, MAIL BOX INSTALLATION-

SINGLE – Unit of measure on the bid form is Lump Sum.  Typically these are paid 

by the Each.  Please confirm. 

Answer #26: Lump sum is the unit of measure for payment. 

Question #27: Camino Torcido Bid Form – line # 701031, REMOVE AND RESET TRAFFIC 

SIGN – Unit of measure on the bid form is Lump Sum.  Typically these are paid by 

the Each.  Please confirm. 

Answer #27: Lump sum is the unit of measure for payment. 

Question #28: Are there any moratorium roads or roads/bridges that we cannot use heavy trucks on 

to get material to or from the project? 

Answer #28: Contractors can contact material suppliers for direction.  

Question #29: Plans show that the driveways are paved… 

a. Are the quantities for the driveway pavement included in the pavement

quantities?

b. Is the driveway pavement section the same as the roadway section? If not, can

you provide the driveway pavement section?
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Answer #29: a. Driveways and driveway turnouts are not to be paved and are not included

in pavement quantities.

b. No Driveway pavement. Please see sheet 02-01.

Question #30: Sheet no. 12-01 shows the bedding and backfill details.  The details for suitable and 

unsuitable existing foundations are provided. 

a. Is there a geotechnical report that determines which driveways require the

corresponding details?

b. Are those quantities for excavation for the driveway culvert pipes included in

the earthwork quantities?

c. We didn’t see any quantity for the granular material or bedding material in the

quantity bid sheet.

Answer #30: a. No Geotechnical Report.  All existing material is considered suitable.

However, if material is found to be unstable then use the detail for unstable

foundations.

b. No the culvert pipe excavation is incidental to the cost of the Culvert Pipe

pricing in accordance with NMDOT section 570 pipe culverts.

c. This is incidental to the cost of the Culvert Pipe in accordance with

NMDOT section 570 Pipe Culverts.

Question #31: Channel Construction 

a. The channel detail calls for non-wire wired enclosed class b rip rap at a 1:1

slope.  In our experience class b cannot be stacked at a 1:1 slope.

i. Should this be changed to include the wire enclosed blankets or is there

enough room to have the slopes at 1:1.5?

b. There is a 20’ drainage easement for the channel.  Will there be a temporary

construction easement in place during construction so that we have room to work on

the channel?

c. On sheets numbered 03-08, the cross sections show the channel encroaching

over the 20’ easement.  Is there a letter of permission or an agreement from the

property owners to allow this?

Answer #31: a. Place Class B Rip Rap in accordance with the plans.  Class B riprap has  two

fractured faces and a minimum dimension of 6” which should work per plan

on Sheet 02-09.

i. Place Class B Rip Rap in accordance with plans.

b. Means and methods are the Contractor responsibility.  Santa Fe County has

permanent easements in place, but Santa Fe County will help acquire

temporary work permits from property owners before construction begins.

Trench boxes may be required.
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c. The Channel Cross section will be field fit to assure it remains in the

easement.

Question #32: There are 2 different pavement sections for the projects… 

a. One shows 2.5” of asphalt over 5” of base course.  The other plan set shows 2”

of asphalt over 4” base course.  We are accustomed to placing a 2.5” asphalt section

on County projects.  Can you please verify that the 2” asphalt section is acceptable?

    Answer #32: 2” Asphalt per plan is acceptable on Racetrack Subdivision per plan Sheet 2-1. 

Question #33: There is no bid item for testing.  Will testing be required from the contractors? 

Answer #33: Testing is required per NMDOT Minimum Testing Requirements May 2, 2013 

for the Contractor.  Contractor is responsible for Quality Control Testing.  

These tests are incidental to their associate pay items. 

Question #34: Does existing site soil meet the required R Value? 

Answer #34: Yes the existing material meets R-Value. 

Questions #35: On sheet GR1, there is a 15’ drainage easement for channel and drop inlets.  The 

drop inlets  

and the excavation to build them are over 10’ deep.  We will be required to slope and 

bench the earth for construction safety.   

a. Is there or will there be a temporary construction easement in place for the

construction of these structures?

Answer #35: Means and methods are the Contractors responsibility.  SF County has 

permanent easements in place, but SFC will help acquire temporary work 

permits from property owners before construction begins.  Trench Boxes may be 

required. 

Question #36: On Camino Largo and Camino Mocho, some of the drop inlets and pipes are close to 

and over 10’ deep and within 5’ of the property-R/W line. 

a. Is there going to be a temporary construction easement in place on the private

property so that we can place shoring and/or bench our slopes?

Answer #36: Means and methods are the Contractor responsibility.  SF County has 

permanent easements in place, but SFC will help acquire temporary work 

permits from property owners before construction begins.  Trench Boxes may be 

required. 
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Question #37: On sheet 1-6 Drawing G6, under “Excavation and Backfill”, note 4, it requires the 

contractor to seed any disturbed areas.  In the pre-bid meeting, the County officials 

said that the County is Responsible for reseeding.  Please clarify 

Answer #37: Seeding is not required. 

Question #38: There are no details for drop inlets, pipes and pipe bedding. 

a. If we are to assume that the same details from Camino Torcido Loop apply…

i. The details for suitable and unsuitable existing foundations are provided.

ii. Is there a geotechnical report that determines which pipes require the

corresponding details?

iii. Are those quantities for excavation for the all pipes included in the earthwork

quantities?

1. We didn’t see any quantity for the granular material or bedding

material in the quantity bid sheet.

Answer #38: a. Drop inlets are NMDOT standard drawing 623 per 2-1. Culvert pipes are

shown on the plans as Arch CMP per sheet 2-1.

i. There is no Geotechnical report.

ii. No, the culvert pipe excavation is incidental to the cost of

the Culvert Pipe pricing in accordance with NMDOT

specification 570 Pipe Culvert.

iii. This is incidental to the cost of the Culvert Pipe in

accordance with NMDOT specification 570 Pipe Culverts.

Question #39: What asphalt mix will be required for the Racetrack Subdivision? 

Answer #39: SP –IV asphalt. 

Question #40: Detail C, Sheet DT1, Racetrack Subdivision Plans – Detail says to place 3” of base 

course at culverts, or restore to original condition.  Is this work incidental to the 

culverts? 

Answer #40: Any Base course used for this purpose will be paid for at the line item cost for 

Base course. 

Question #41: Is the maturity method going to be used on all concrete? 

Answer #41: Maturity Method will be used in accordance with section 510.3.5.2 In Place 

Concrete Strength Measurements if the Contractor requests in place strength 

measurements for construction related purposes. 
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Question #42: Because these plans were completed at the same time and the projects are next to 

each other, Santa Fe County decided to bid both projects together and award them to 

one Contractor. 

Answer #42: There are two sets of plans and two projects that will be awarded to one 

contractor. Horrocks designed the plans for Racetrack Subdivision. HDR 

designed the plans for Camino Torcido Loop. 

Please add this Addendum #2 to the original proposal documents and refer to proposal documents, 

hereto as such.  This and all subsequent addenda will become part of any resulting contract documents 

and have effects as if original issued.  All other unaffected sections will have their original interpretation 

and remain in full force and effect.  Responders are reminded that any questions or need for clarification 

must be addressed to Michelle A. Marmion, Senior Procurement Specialist at 

mmarmion@santafecountynm.gov. 

mailto:mmarmion@santafecountynm.gov

















